


Lead poisoning and off-taste caused by contact with meta] were among the factors that prompted 

public resistence to certain hermetically canned foods. Dry merchandise, which could be canned without 

heat and solder, was more readily accepted. Tobacco, oils, gunpowder, and coffee, were commonly sold 

in tins without major public resistence. 

Throughout the nineteenth century, food canners tried to improve their product and their 

production methods, but most cans continued to be made individually by workers in the loft over the 

canning factory. Americans patented many different processes and machines, which may be used as 

dating evidence on sites where cans have survived. Some of the innovators founded canneries that 

produced their peculiar cans; Richardson and Robbins' famous tapered plum pudding can was made in 

Dover within living memory. By 1902, modern open-top cans had replaced many of the hole-in-top styles; 

these cans are made by machine in separate manufacturing plants. As the can manufacture and canning 

industries separated, unlabelled food containers became standardized and potentially less sensitive to 

arch<eological analysis. 

Early history of canning in America 

Tinware manufacture began in America around the time of the Revolution (Fontana and Greenleaf 

1962). Tin-plated steel sheets had long been used for utensils in Europe, perhaps as early as the thirteenth 

century. 

Plate 5
 

Cans produced at the Lebanon cannery, from the collection of Dr. E. D. Bryan
 

13
 





Plate 6 

Interior of the Richardson and Robbins plant in Dover, early twentieth century, 
from a glass plate negative in the Holmes Studio collection, copied through the 
courtesy of Mr. and Mrs. Howard Sheppard. 

In 1795, the French government offered a reward of 12,000 francs for a method of food 

preservation to support Napoleon's armies. A French confectioner, Nicholas Appert, won the prize in 

1809 for a method using corked bottles and gained himself the somewhat misleading title of "father of 

canning." He published a treatise in 1810, describing the process, which involved heating the bottled 

provisions in a water bath, with emphasis on excluding air (Minchinton 1957:254). A similar process had 

been advocated by an Englishman named Saddington in 1807 (Sim 1951:12-14). Tinned cans for food 

packaging were patented in 1810 by Peter Durand in England and marketed under the relatively 

unappetizing name of "embalmed provisions." He introduced a handmade can to America in 1818. 
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Plate 7 

Work room of the Samuel Derby apple packing house at Woodside early in the twentieth 

century. Fresh shipment of fruits was facilitated by the advent of the railroads, but markets 

were limited by the keeping qualities of the fruits. Photo courtesy of Samuel D. Walker. 

Durand's cans were made by hand, by tinkers who could produce as many as sixty a day, making 

each one individually. Each can had a hole in the top, into which the product was placed; after the can was 

filled, a cap was soldered over the hole. This would become the standard food can through the rest of the 

nineteenth century. 

The last necessary step that made possible modern canning was the process of "exhausting," 

introduced by Pierre Antoine Angilbert in 1823. Each soldered-on cap had a small pinhole, which was left 

open while the can's contents were cooked; the pinhole allowed the escape of gasses during the capping 

process, and during the cooking. While the can was still hot, a drop of solder was placed on the hole; the 
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crude, although they were being made laboriously by hand in Europe. In 1888, Ams experimented with 

lock seams, for which he perfected a machine in 1898 (Rock 1987). 

European double-seamed cans of the period were sealed with a thick rubber gasket, over which the 

can lid was crimped. American manufacturers replaced this gasket with an adhesive compound and a series 

of innovations followed in rapid succession. In 1901, the Max Ams Machine Company demonstrated the 

first practical system of machinery for making and sealing sanitary cans in quantities. 

Plate 8 

Second location of the E. L. Jones machine shop and foundry in Dover, which was 

established with the assistance of A. B. Richardson, who wanted a nearby source of 

machinery and service for the Richardson and Robbins cannery. Photo courtesy Mrs. W. Ross 

Jones and Dr. E. D. Bryan 
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